
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
Damian Allen 
Chief Executive 
 
Issued on: Friday, 26th January 2024 
 
Governance Officer for this meeting  Caroline Martin 
  Tel: 01302 734941 
City of Doncaster Council 
www.doncaster.gov.uk 

 
 

Agenda 
___________________________________________________________________
_ 
To all Members of the 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
Notice is given that a Meeting of the above Committee is to be held as follows: 

  
Venue:   Council Chamber - Civic Office  
 
Date:      Monday, 5th February, 2024 
 
Time:      1.00 pm 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
BROADCASTING NOTICE This meeting is being filmed for subsequent 
broadcast via the Council’s web site. The Council is a Data Controller under 
the Data Protection Act and images collected during this recording will be 
retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy.  
 
Please be aware that by entering the meeting, you accept that you may be 
filmed and the images used for the purpose set out above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 
excluded from the meeting.  

 

3. Declarations of Interest, if any.   

4. Public Statements.   
 [A period not exceeding 20 minutes for statements from up to 5 

members of the public on matters within the Committee’s remit, 
proposing action(s) which may be considered or contribute 
towards the future development of the Committee’s work 
programme]. 

 

A.  Reports where the public and press may not be excluded.  
 

 
 
5. Corporate Plan 2024/25 (Pages 1 - 28)  
 
6. Overview and Scrutiny Consideration of the Mayor's Budget Proposals 

2024/25 - 2027/28 (Pages 29 - 34) 
 

 
7. Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan and the Council's Forward Plan of 

Key Decisions (Pages 35 - 52) 
 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

 
Chair – Councillor Jane Kidd 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Jake Kearsley 
 
Councillors Gemma Cobby, Steve Cox, Leanne Hempshall, Richard A Jones, 
Majid Khan and Glynis Smith 
 
Education Co-optees* 
 
Antoinette Drinkhill 
Bernadette Nesbit 
 
 
*Education Co-optees are invited to attend the meeting and vote on any Education 
functions which are the responsibility of the Authority’s Executive. They may also 
participate in but not vote on other issues relating to Children and Young People. 
 
 

Items for Discussion: 
 
1. Apologies for absence.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 5 Feb 2024 

To: Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  

Report Title: Corporate Plan 2024/25 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision? 

Mayor and Cabinet All Yes 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. Each year we produce a Corporate Plan – a document setting out the Council’s 

priorities and headline activity for the coming year. It links to the Team Doncaster 

borough strategy, Doncaster Delivering Together (DDT), and it’s Great 8 priorities. 

2. The plan identifies 10 Corporate Priorities with a selection of key actions for each. 

They are grouped into Organisational, People-focused, and Place-focused 

priorities, plus a general priority representing the Council’s contribution to the 

Team Doncaster tier one strategies (e.g. economy, education and skills etc). 

3. The Plan includes the resources we have available and outlines the way the 

Council will work (e.g. Localities model and our corporate values) and sets out our 

Service Standards associated with each of the Great 8 priorities. 

EXEMPT REPORT 

4.  n/a 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

5. Review and provide feedback on the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2024/25 prior 

to its final approval at Full Council on 26 February 2024. 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 

6. They will be clear on what the Council’s key priorities are, along with the activity 

we will undertake and how we will assess our progress and performance.  

BACKGROUND 

7. The Team Doncaster borough strategy, Doncaster Delivering Together (DDT), 

sets out our ambition to 2030 and identifies the partnership’s ‘Great 8 Priorities’. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Looking back – what we’ve done 

8. A full review of progress against DDT has recently been published on the Team 

Doncaster website. Below are a few example contributions from the Council across 

2023/24. 

9. Tackling climate change 
 

• Installation of new electric vehicle charging points and Council fleet vehicles 

replaced with electric vehicles. 

• Low carbon grants administered by Business Doncaster to small and medium 

enterprises and micro businesses, supporting their decarbonisation efforts. 

• Tiny Forests tree planting and Green Flag status at numerous parks. 

10. Developing the skills to thrive in life and work 
 

• Hosted the UK’s first Remake Learning Days festival, with over 10,000 

residents engaging in over 80 different events. 

• A new University Technical College built in the city centre, focussing on 

Engineering and Creative & Digital. Plans approved for a second UTC which 

will focus on Health & Care and Green Tech. 

11. Making Doncaster the best place to do business and create good jobs 
 

• Stainforth Towns Deal programme underway and additional masterplans 

developed/in development for Edlington, Thorne and Moorends, Rossington, 

and Mexborough. 

• South Yorkshire Airport City programme established to reopen the airport and 

develop a cluster of high value economic activity which complements traditional 

aerospace functions, including logistics. 

12. Building opportunities for healthier, happier, and longer lives for all 
 

• ‘Making it Real’ board created – enabling user experience to shape our 

strategies and services to deliver personalised care and support. This has led 

to reduced waiting times for, and duration of, assessments for our services. 

• Launched and embedded Doncaster’s All Age Carer’s Strategy, outlining 

support to unpaid carers. Social Care Academy and Proud to Care campaign 

continue to support adult social care recruitment. 

• Delivered/supported Wellbeing and Digital Hubs: Food and Health banks, 

Warm Welcome Spaces, Winter Warmth Programme, income management, 

Debt Advice, Energy Advice, Healthy Homes, Health and Wellbeing, social 

isolation, Citizens Advice.  

13. Creating safer, stronger, greener, and cleaner communities where 
everyone belongs  

• Launched and embedded our localities working model in all 4 delivery areas, 

each with their own locality plan, budget, and dedicated lead officer. 

• Road safety presentations in primary schools.  

• Refreshed our Equalities, Diversity, and Inclusion framework to ensure it is an 

integrated consideration in all our decision-making processes and included 

‘Care Experience’ as one of our local protected characteristics. 

• Helped over 225 Ukrainian refugees settle in Doncaster.  

Page 2



• Shortlisted for the Keep Britain Tidy ‘Environmental Campaign of the Year’ 

category. 

• English lessons for speakers of other languages provided at multiple venues. 

14. Nurturing a child and family-friendly borough 
 

• Supported food banks and food pantries with grants. 

• Domestic abuse services expanded – recruitment of additional staff, including 

a strategic lead officer, and the introduction of a survivor liaison scheme.  

• Supported organisations to achieve child-friendly accreditation.  

• Continued implementation of our Healthy Learning, Healthy Lives programme 

in schools which looks to improve diet, nutrition and increase physical activity. 

• School holiday activity provision – affordable family activities with free meals. 

• Commissioned mental health support in community settings and schools. 

15. Building transport and digital connections fit for the future 
 

• Rail connectivity improvements at Hatfield and Stainforth as part of the Town 

Deal. 

• Investments in walking and cycling route access to rail stations, as well as 

lighting, signage, car parking and cycle storage. 

• Extensive borough-wide programme of road and path resurfacing and surface 

dressing. 

16. Promoting the borough and its cultural, sporting and heritage 
opportunities  

• Promoted cultural, tourism and green assets including parks and open spaces 

as part of Visit Doncaster’s marketing to local communities and external visitors. 

• Hosted regular Visitor Economy Group meetings to share knowledge around 

the sector and attract new events to Doncaster. 

• Delivered or supported local events programme e.g., Delicious Doncaster, DN 

Festival of Light. 

• Royal visit to mark city status from HRH King Charles. 

 

Looking forward – our Corporate Plan for 2024/25 

17. Each Team Doncaster partner should set out how they will contribute to the DDT 

ambition via their own organisation’s plan. The Council calls this our ‘Corporate 

Plan’ and refreshes it on an annual basis. This plan runs across the financial year 

– from April 2024 to March 2025. 

18. The Corporate Plan identifies 10 key priorities for 2024/25, grouped into three 

themes: Organisational, People-focused, and Place-focussed. The order of the 

priorities does not represent an order of importance.  

Organisational Priorities: 

19. The first three priorities relate to how we will work and our commitment to equality, 

diversity, inclusion, and fairness. 

Priority 1. Cultivate a Dynamic, Diverse, Informed & Empowered Workforce 

Priority 2. Think Local, Act Personally 

Priority 3. Create a fairer, kinder, more inclusive city 

Page 3



People-focused Priorities: 

20. The next three priorities relate to our adult and children’s services and how they 

will work with the NHS. 

Priority 4. Improve outcomes in adult social care 

Priority 5. Co-deliver an impactful NHS partnership 

Priority 6. Improve outcomes for children through a high-performing 

Children’s directorate 

Place-focused Priorities: 

21. The next three priorities cover specific deliverables associated with the economy 

and infrastructure themes, and a range of factors that affect quality of life within 

our neighbourhoods. 

Priority 7. Develop our South Yorkshire Airport City 

Priority 8. Deliver Major Projects 

Priority 9. Create safer, stronger, cleaner neighbourhoods 

22. Priority 10: Deliver council contributions to Team Doncaster strategies 

covers all other activity under within the following strategies: Education & Skills, 

Health & Wellbeing, Culture, Economic, Housing, and Environment & 

Sustainability. 

23. Each corporate priority contributes to one or more of the DDT Great 8 priorities 

and is presented with a series of actions that will take place in 2024/25. A Cabinet 

Lead and a Lead Officer is identified for each one. 

24. This year’s plan also includes an overview/reference to the work planned by our 

Arms-Length Management Organisations – St Leger Homes of Doncaster and 

Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust. The detail for which can be found in their 

own specific plans, by following the links included. 

25. The Corporate Plan finishes with an overview of how we will monitor and review 

our progress and performance across the year. 

 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

26. Option 1 (recommended). Approve the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2024/25. 

27. Option 2 (not recommended). Do not approve the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

28. As a public body, we should be clear and transparent about what we will do with 

the public money and resources we control. As a member of the Team Doncaster 

partnership, we should be clear about what contribution we will make towards our 

collective Team Doncaster 2030 ambition. 

Page 4



29. The Council’s Corporate Plan has been developed using input from the elected 

and corporate leadership teams, and the directorate leadership teams that will be 

responsible for delivering the plan.  

30. The Plan is consistent with the previous public communication regarding future 

priorities made by the Mayor (May 2023) and in the Team Doncaster DDT review 

publicised at this year’s Team Doncaster Summit (Nov 2023). 

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 

31. Approving the Plan itself will not make an impact, but delivery of the priorities and 

activity it contains will make direct and indirect impacts across all Great 8 priorities. 

Great 8 Priority  
Positive 
Overall 

Mix of 
Positive 

& 
Negative 

Trade-
offs to 

consider 
Negative 
overall 

Neutral or 
No 

implications 

 

Tackling Climate Change ✓    
 

Developing the skills to 
thrive in life and in work ✓    

 

Making Doncaster the best 
place to do business and 
create good jobs 

✓    
 

Building opportunities for 
healthier, happier and 
longer lives for all 

✓    
 

Creating safer, stronger, 
greener, and cleaner 
communities where 
everyone belongs 

✓    
 

Nurturing a child and family-
friendly borough ✓    

 

Building Transport and 
digital connections fit for the 
future 

✓    
 Promoting the borough and 

its cultural, sporting, and 
heritage opportunities 

✓    

Fair & Inclusive ✓    
 

32. Legal Implications [Officer Initials: SRF   Date: 07.12.23] 

Page 5



Whilst there are no specific legal implications arising out of the report, the 

programmes of activity that will deliver the Corporate Plan will require specific and 

detailed legal advice as they develop further and move towards delivery. The 

Corporate Plan forms part of the budgetary and policy framework and must be 

approved by Full Council. 

33. Financial Implications [Officer Initials: MS    Date: 12/12/23] 

The financial implications of the priorities and actions in the Corporate Plan are 

contained within the Revenue, Capital and Housing Revenue Account 2024/25 

budget reports that will be considered by Council in February 2024. As specific 

actions and programmes of activity are developed further, more specific financial 

implications will be provided in relevant reports. 

34. Human Resources Implications [Officer Initials: KG   | Date: 11/12/23 ] 

There are no specific HR implications arising from this report however there may 

be HR implications within specific projects arising from the corporate plan 

objectives; these will be included in the appropriate individual reports. 

35. Technology Implications [Officer Initials: PW  Date: 07/12/23] 

Technology is an essential enabler to support the delivery of all services together 

with the wellbeing goals and key deliverables outlined in the updated Corporate 

Plan.  Robust and effective ICT governance arrangements will continue to be 

needed to ensure the delivery of the key priorities.  New technology requirements 

to support the key priorities will be considered by the Council’s Technology 

Governance Board (TGB) for inclusion in the Technology Forward Plan, to ensure 

the resources, expertise and capacity within services is available. This will be 

monitored and continuously reviewed via TGB. 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

36.  None. 

CONSULTATION 

37.  Engagement with relevant leadership teams and officers across all directorates. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

38.  None. 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

39.  DDT – Doncaster Delivering Together, NHS – National Health Service 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS  

Andy Brown, Senior Policy, Insight and Change Manager 
01302 736075 | andy.brown@doncaster.gov.uk 

Allan Wiltshire, Head of Policy, Performance & Intelligence 
01302 862307 | allan.wiltshire@doncaster.gov.uk 

Lee Tillman, Assistant Director of Policy, Insight and Change 
01302 734552 | lee.tillman@doncaster.gov.uk 

Page 6

mailto:andy.brown@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:allan.wiltshire@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:lee.tillman@doncaster.gov.uk


 

 

City of Doncaster Council 

 

Corporate Plan 

2024-2025  
 

 

  

 

 

 

P
age 7

Appendix A



 

 

 

Contents 

INTRODUCTION 3 

Foreword 3 

Wellbeing Goals and Outcomes 4 

Our Priorities for 2024/25 5 

What resources do we have available? 6 

ORGANISATIONAL PRIORITIES – How we will work 7 

Priority 1. Cultivate a Dynamic, Diverse, Informed & Empowered Workforce 7 

Locality Working 8 

Priority 2. Think Local, Act Personally 8 

Equality, Diversity, Inclusion and Fairness 10 

Priority 3. Create a fairer, kinder, more inclusive city 10 

PEOPLE-FOCUSED PRIORITIES 11 

Priority 4. Improve outcomes in adult social care 11 

Priority 5. Co-deliver an impactful NHS partnership 11 

Priority 6. Improve outcomes for children through a high-performing children’s directorate 11 

PLACE-FOCUSED PRIORITIES 12 

Priority 7. Develop our South Yorkshire Airport City 12 

Priority 8. Deliver Major Projects 12 

Priority 9. Create safer, stronger, cleaner neighbourhoods 12 

Priority 10: Deliver Council contributions to Team Doncaster strategies 13 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 13 

Education and Skills Strategy 13 

Culture Strategy 13 

Housing Strategy 14 

Economic Strategy 14 

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 14 

ARMS-LENGTH MANAGEMENT ORGANISATIONS 15 

St Leger Homes of Doncaster (SLHD) 15 

Doncaster Culture & Leisure Trust (DCLT) 16 

MONITORING PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE 17 

Our Service Standards 17 

ANNEX: LOCALITY PLANS (SUMMARY) 18 

 

  

P
age 8

https://doncastercouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/S_PPG_PIT/Shared%20Documents/General/SPU/CofE%20Policy%20and%20Partnership/Corporate%20Plan/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25v6%20OSMC.docx#_Toc156548051
https://doncastercouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/S_PPG_PIT/Shared%20Documents/General/SPU/CofE%20Policy%20and%20Partnership/Corporate%20Plan/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25v6%20OSMC.docx#_Toc156548052
https://doncastercouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/S_PPG_PIT/Shared%20Documents/General/SPU/CofE%20Policy%20and%20Partnership/Corporate%20Plan/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25v6%20OSMC.docx#_Toc156548053
https://doncastercouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/S_PPG_PIT/Shared%20Documents/General/SPU/CofE%20Policy%20and%20Partnership/Corporate%20Plan/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25v6%20OSMC.docx#_Toc156548054
https://doncastercouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/S_PPG_PIT/Shared%20Documents/General/SPU/CofE%20Policy%20and%20Partnership/Corporate%20Plan/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25v6%20OSMC.docx#_Toc156548055
https://doncastercouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/S_PPG_PIT/Shared%20Documents/General/SPU/CofE%20Policy%20and%20Partnership/Corporate%20Plan/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25v6%20OSMC.docx#_Toc156548056
https://doncastercouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/S_PPG_PIT/Shared%20Documents/General/SPU/CofE%20Policy%20and%20Partnership/Corporate%20Plan/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25v6%20OSMC.docx#_Toc156548062


INTRODUCTION 

Foreword 

 
Mayor Ros Jones 
 
 
 

  
Damian Allen 
Chief Executive 
 

Welcome to the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2024-
2025. 

This sets out our short-term priorities and activity 
associated with the longer-term ambitions identified in 
Team Doncaster’s ‘Doncaster Delivering Together’ 
borough strategy.  

No single organisation can deliver these ambitions on 
their own, so this Plan should be considered a 
contribution to the overall activity, not the entirety of 
what is planned for Doncaster. 

Although this is the Council’s Plan, we make it clear that 
much of the work we will do will be done together with 
our Team Doncaster partners – this way we can get 
more from our collective resources and stand a better 
chance of achieving our central mission: Thriving 
People, Places and Planet.  

We face a range of challenges of different scale and 
type. Some challenges are more significant and 
engrained and so need a longer-term response over 
multiple years – for example, tackling low healthy life 
expectancy or tackling deprivation. Much of the activity 
to respond to such issues is already established and so 
this year will see a continuation and/or expansion of 
such projects, services, and interventions.  

On the other hand, some challenges pop up 
unexpectedly – such as responding to the closure of the 
airport or supporting our residents in response to 
adverse weather-related emergencies such as flooding.  

 Whatever the issue, residents and businesses can be 
assured that we are working hard to effectively 
respond to such challenges, together with work to 
prevent or limit the impact of future events. 

To deliver on both fronts is becoming more difficult 
every year as we are continually left with reduced 
resources with which to work. This is why we put so 
much emphasis on the joining up of efforts by multiple 
organisations, together with the resident-informed 
initiatives that target resources where they are needed 
the most. 

Despite the challenges, there is much to be positive 
about in Doncaster, from continued significant 
regeneration in the city centre, towns, and villages 
throughout the borough; to an array of activity set out 
in the agreed partnership-wide strategies for the 
economy, environment, education and skills, housing, 
and culture. 

This Plan sets out some of the work we will be 
delivering for our residents and businesses, and we 
hope that when invited, you will all continue to engage 
with the development of our projects and services so 
that we can make further improvements together. 

  

 
 

 

P
age 9



Wellbeing Goals and Outcomes  
Launched in September 2021, Doncaster 
Delivering Together (DDT) is our 10-year 
Borough Strategy.  

https://www.teamdoncaster.org.uk/doncaster-
delivering-together 

Doncaster and the world around us are 
changing in many ways and it is time to 
rethink what it means for Doncaster’s 
residents and communities to live well 
together now and in the future. We need a 
clear set of goals to aim for. 

DDT emphasises the need to improve 
wellbeing and builds on the success of our 
previous Borough Strategy.  

The Wellbeing Wheel shows Doncaster’s six 
Wellbeing Goals. These are the long-term 
ambitions that we will work towards. 

The Wellbeing Goals interconnect – for 
example, reducing unemployment must go 
together with plans to improve health 
outcomes, skills, and transport connections. 
Together the Goals contribute to one overall 
Mission: Thriving People, Places and 
Planet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Team Doncaster partnership listened to 
the views of residents, businesses, 
community groups and organisations and 
agreed the ‘Great 8’ priorities.  

Delivering these priorities will require 
collaborating closely with communities on 
local solutions – we need to use all the skills, 
ideas, resources, and passion Doncaster 
has to offer. Government and regional 
support are also required, and we will need 
to work with a variety of partners outside of 
Doncaster on the shared actions that will 
make the biggest difference.  

 

1. Tackling climate change 

 

2. Developing the skills to thrive 
in life and work 

 

3. Making Doncaster the best 
place to do business and 
create good jobs 

 

4. Building opportunities for 
healthier, happier, and longer 
lives for all. 

 

5. Creating safer, stronger, 
greener, and cleaner 
communities where everyone 
belongs. 

 

6. Nurturing a child and family-
friendly borough  

 

7. Building transport and digital 
connections fit for the future 

 

8. Promoting the borough and 
its cultural, sporting and 
heritage opportunities 

 

 

 

HEALTHY AND COMPASSIONATE 

A compassionate borough where everyone 
is supported to add life to years and years to 
life. Health affects many aspects of life so 
addressing health inequalities is a priority for 
our Integrated Care System. Improving this 
includes: 

• More opportunities for walking and 
cycling  

• More support for physical and mental 
health 

• Pushing Government for a new hospital 

PROSPEROUS AND CONNECTED 

A stronger, greener, and fairer economy that 
provides good, well-paid jobs and is 
supported by improved transport and active 
travel infrastructure and access to good 
broadband. This includes: 

• More quality jobs and residents in work 

• Better public transport connections 

• Vibrant town centres  

• More thriving local businesses 

GREENER AND CLEANER 

All residents, communities and 
organisations working together to protect 
and enhance the local and global 
environment to improve wellbeing. This 
includes: 

• Planting 1 million trees 

• Improving air quality 

• Having more places to enjoy nature and 
recreation 

• Cleaner neighbourhoods and less fly-
tipping 

• Reducing carbon emissions 

SKILLED AND CREATIVE 

Residents have improved skills and a 
creative culture supports wellbeing, 
business success and solutions to the 
borough’s challenges. This includes: 

• Improving educational attainment across 
all key stages 

• Providing more options to gain the skills 
needed for good jobs 

• Providing more work-based learning 
opportunities 

• More opportunities to enjoy arts and 
culture 

SAFE AND RESILIENT 

Residents feel safe and communities are 
more resilient to challenges and 
emergencies. Overall community resilience 
can be improved by: 

• Investing in more affordable homes 

• Reducing crime & antisocial behaviour 

• More local services providing support 
closer to communities 

• Strengthened voluntary sector 

FAIR AND INCLUSIVE 

A borough with reduced inequalities and 
improved access to social and economic 
opportunities for all. This includes: 

• Reducing poverty 

• Providing more support to our most 
deprived communities 

• More local social opportunities and 
places to meet 

• Providing residents with a greater voice 
to shape their community 

P
age 10

https://www.teamdoncaster.org.uk/doncaster-delivering-together
https://www.teamdoncaster.org.uk/doncaster-delivering-together


Our Priorities for 2024/25 

Our priorities are grouped into three themes: Organisational, People-focused, 
and Place-focused. Each priority has an elected member that has overall 
responsibility for its achievement and a senior Council officer responsible for 
delivering activity.  

The logos show which of the DDT Great 8 priorities to which they contribute. Please 
note that the priority numbers do not represent an order of importance. 

                

                

                

 

                 

       

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
 

Priority 1. Cultivate a Dynamic, Diverse, 
Informed & Empowered Workforce 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for Corporate Resources 
Lead Officer: Assistant Director Policy Insight and Change 

Attracting and developing the best talent with a diverse range 
of skills, experiences, and perspectives. Embedding our 
Values, taking advantage of technology and delivering efficient 
services. 

Priority 2. Think Local, Act Personally 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for Public 
Health, Communities, Leisure, and Culture  
Lead Officer: Assistant Director Policy Insight and Change 

Embedding our Localities working model, where services and 
interventions are tailored to the needs of and delivered from 
within our communities.  

Priority 3. Create a fairer, kinder & 
more inclusive city 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for Children's  
Social Care and Equalities; Cabinet Member for Public Health, 
Communities, Leisure, and Culture  
Lead Officer: Assistant Director Policy Insight & Change 
/ Director of Public Health & Prevention 

Developing and coordinating a coherent programme focussing in 
on the DDT Fair and Inclusive wellbeing goal. 

P
e

o
p

le
-f

o
c

u
s
e

d
 

Priority 4. Improve outcomes in Adult Social Care 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care  
Lead Officer: Director Adults, Well-being, and Culture 

Addressing existing challenges within the Adult Social Care 
services to improve efficiency and effectiveness of the support 
we provide to residents. 

Priority 5. Co-deliver an impactful NHS 
partnership 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for Adult Social  
Care; Cabinet Member for Public Health, Communities, Leisure, 
and Culture; Cabinet Member for Children's Social Care and 
Equalities   
Lead Officer: Director Adults, Well-being and Culture, Director 
of Public Health & Prevention 

Improving the way Council services work together with the NHS 
to deliver joined-up health and social care services to residents. 

Priority 6. Improve outcomes for 
children through a high-performing 
Children’s directorate 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for Children's Social Care and 
Equalities; Cabinet Member for Early Help, Education, Skills, and 
Young People 
Lead Officer: Director Children and Families 

Addressing existing challenges within the Children’s services to 
improve efficiency and effectiveness of the support we provide to 
residents. 

P
la

c
e
-f

o
c
u

s
e
d

 

Priority 7. Develop our South 
Yorkshire Airport City 

Cabinet Lead: Mayor  
Lead Officer: Director of Corporate Services 

Reopening the Airport for commercial flights and developing 
the broader area for economic use. 

Priority 8. Deliver Major Projects 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for Highways, 
Infrastructure and Enforcement; Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Traded Services and Planning 
Lead Officer: Director or Corporate Services 

Delivery of Levelling Up Round 1 funded schemes, our two 
Town Deal funded programmes, and a range of Transport 
improvement interventions. 

Priority 10. Deliver Council contributions to Team Doncaster strategies 

EDUCATION & SKILLS 
Cabinet Lead:  
Cabinet Member for Early 
Help, Education, Skills, and 
Young People.  

Lead Officer: Director 
Children and Families 

CULTURE 
Cabinet Lead:  
Cabinet Member for Public 
Health, Communities, 
Leisure, and Culture     

Lead Officer: Director 
Adults, Wellbeing & Culture 

HEALTH & WELLBEING 
Cabinet Lead:  
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care; Cabinet 
Member for Public Health, Communities, Leisure, and 
Culture; Cabinet Member for Children's Social Care 
and Equalities, Cabinet Member for Early Help, 
Education, Skills, and Young People. 

Lead Officer: Director Adults, Wellbeing and Culture 

ECONOMY 
Cabinet Lead:  
Mayor, Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
and Business. 

Lead Officer: 
Director Place 

HOUSING 
Cabinet Lead:  
Cabinet Member 
for Housing and 
Business.  

Lead Officer: 
Director Place 

ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY 
Cabinet Lead:  
Cabinet Member for Sustainability & 
Waste. 

 
Lead Officer:  
Director Place 

Priority 9. Create Safer, 
Stronger, cleaner 
neighbourhoods 

Cabinet Lead: Cabinet Member for  
Highways, Infrastructure and Enforcement; Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Business; Cabinet Member for Sustainability and 
Waste.      Lead Officer: Director of Place 
Delivering value for money community services linked to the 
environment and safety. 

P
age 11



What resources do we have available? 

Context  

The Council continues to face the significant 
challenge of setting a balanced budget with 
reducing and uncertain funding, increasing costs, 
increasing demand, and no reduction in our 
statutory obligations to provide services.  

We have repeatedly been successful in achieving 
a balanced budget each year, through prudent 
financial management and careful planning, whilst 
always putting our support for Doncaster people, 
communities, and businesses at the forefront of 
our decision-making. 

Financial Pressures 

Our main financial pressure continues to be from 
social care, which is consistent with national 
trends.  

Increasing demand for services, together with 
limited supply and increased costs, continue to 
prompt the development of innovative ways of 
working and cross-partner delivery, enabling our 
residents to get the support they need in the way 
they want it.  

Our expenditure in Adults, Health, and Wellbeing; 
Children, Young People and Families; and Public 
Health accounts for around two-thirds of our total 
expenditure. 

How much do we have available? 

In 2024/25 the gross revenue budget is £633m. In 
addition, the capital programme provides further 
investment of £507m over 2024/25 to 2027/28. 

Where does our money come from? 

The Council’s money comes from a range of 
sources, the amounts and proportions differing in 
any given year. Council Tax and Business Rates, 
for example, provide around 45% of the revenue 
funding we need to deliver our priorities in 2024/25. 
Additional funding comes from Government grants 
and fees and charges to the public. 

Our Strategy 

We have a Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) in place that sets out the Council’s 
commitment to providing value for money services 
to deliver our mission for Thriving People, Places 
and Planet, within the overall resources available 
to it.  

The MTFS shows how the Council’s finances will 
be structured and managed to ensure that this fits 
with, and supports, the delivery of our Wellbeing 
Goals and the Great 8 priorities. 

The financial strategy aims to use our limited 
resources to do as much as possible whilst 
prioritising the continued protection of the most 
vulnerable people in our community.  

We seek to maximise income from a range of 
sources, and work in partnership with others to get 
more from our collective resources. 

We use our capital programme to invest in 
regeneration of the city by improving infrastructure 
and the efficiency and effectiveness of services.  

 

How we spend 

Wherever possible, the Council spends the 
city’s money locally to help support local 
businesses and organisations.  

All our expenditure decisions are subject to 
appropriate and stringent financial management 
processes and rules, with financial management 
being a fully integrated element of our performance 
management framework – monitored throughout 
the year by both corporate and elected leadership 
teams. 

Our Workforce 

We will continue to be customer-focused, flexible, 
and agile in the way we deliver our services; 
investing in our staff, processes, systems, and 
technology to be as effective and efficient as we 
can be – regularly seeking the feedback from 
appropriate stakeholders as to how well we have 
done and how we can do better. 

Our workforce strategy sets out how we will equip 
our staff with the tools, skills, and behaviours to 
deliver and commission good quality services. This 
is underpinned by high standards of distributed 
leadership and collaborative working, with a 
refreshed set of values for the organisation.  

We will continue to support and develop our staff 
and change the way we work to improve 
performance and better engage with our residents 
to meet their needs. 

  

P
age 12



ORGANISATIONAL PRIORITIES – How we will work 

 

Our Values  

Just as important as what we 
do, is how we do it.  

Our four values set out the 
expectations on how we work 
together as one team, to 
achieve our vision and the 
priorities for the people of 
Doncaster.  

Our values underpin our 
organisational culture and guide 
the way we think and act. 

 Our Behaviours 

 

• We are proud and ambitious.  

• We work with colleagues, partners, and the wider community to develop the best services with and for 
the people of Doncaster.  

• We want to make Doncaster a vibrant place, working alongside our people, businesses, and 
communities, delivering together. 

 

• We are authentic, open and embrace diversity.  

• We listen and engage, working collaboratively together.  

• We ensure our colleagues and customers have a voice. 

 

• We understand our role, are reliable and committed.  

• We keep our promises and do what we say we will do.  

• We take personal responsibility for our performance and development, looking to always improve and 
provide quality services. 

 

• We create an environment based on trust, flexibility, honesty, and compassion.  

• We work flexibly and promote a healthy work/life balance.  

• We encourage our workforce to share skills, knowledge, and be creative in order to develop and grow. 
 

 Priority 1. Cultivate a Dynamic, Diverse, Informed & Empowered Workforce 

   

Key Principles 

• Intelligence-led interventions: using locality-specific data, opinions, and insights to target interventions where needed most. 

• Shared responsibilities: using partner collaboration to get more from our collective resources. 

• Whole-life, whole-system integration: considering all life stages and their transitions points - Starting Well, Living Well and Ageing Well. 

• Early intervention and prevention: identifying and addressing concerns, risks, and opportunities early. 

• Cross-boundary thinking: considering nearby areas too – issues and opportunities often spread across local authority boundaries. 

• Developing Resilience: helping people to help themselves. 

• Adopting a Regenerative mindset, rather than sustainability i.e., Renew and Improve, rather than ‘do no harm’. 

• Asset-based community development: building on distinctive local strengths and opportunities. 

• Attract and engage the best talent, embracing diversity and inclusion to build a range of skills, experiences, and perspectives.  

• Be innovative about how we recruit and retain quality staff in ‘hard to fill’ positions whilst investing in the organisational development priorities.  

• Reform the way we think about people, place, and communities – identify interdependencies with better cross departmental working in terms of building 
intelligence and improving outcomes.  

• Drive delivery of the Team Doncaster borough strategy. 

• Embed our Council workforce behaviours across the whole organisation. 

• Deliver our Medium-Term Financial Strategy – reducing costs, whilst maintaining adequate resources to deliver services. 

• Respond to customers in a timely manner, focusing on a quality customer experience. 

• Take advantage of technology to support modern, effective, and efficient service delivery and digital ways of working. 

• Represent Doncaster in regional and sub-regional structures to deliver maximum impact locally. 

P
age 13



Locality Working 
Doncaster is the largest metropolitan borough in England and has many communities, each with their own strengths and challenges – therefore a one-size-fits-all 
approach does not always work. Our ‘Localities’ are the groups of electoral wards in the North, South, East and Central parts of the city. They are a helpful 
compromise - small enough to be more attuned to local issues than a city-wide focus would allow, but big enough so that issues and opportunities can be dealt with 
more effectively. They also line up with similar geographies used by partners. 

Priority 2. Think Local, Act Personally 

We will ensure a whole-organisation approach to locality-working. This will involve empowering communities by included them in the design and delivery of locality-
specific interventions, and investment in community capacity, places, and services. Helping people to live healthy and active lives within their community will play a 
big part in the way we work so we will embed a new Community Prevention Service to ensure our services are tailored to local needs. Although common themes 
exist throughout the Locality areas, each has its own priorities and activity. Headlines are below, with summaries in the Annex. (Full plans published in April 2024). 

 

THEMES  NORTH LOCALITY  EAST LOCALITY 
     

Environment, 
Sustainability & 
Green Spaces 

 Promote active travel, tree planting, food growing and healthy 
cooking initiatives. Protect parks and support the formation of 
‘Friends of…’ groups. 

 Continue to protect & enhance green spaces with more green 
development. Focus on sustainable living in our homes and 
how we travel. 

     

Community 
Safety 

 Encourage crime & ASB reporting. Promotion of safety 
campaigns. Partnership response to nuisance off-road vehicles. 

 Continued collaboration with East partners to increase feelings of 
community safety by tackling ASB, crime, and road safety 
through Community days of Action, Education and 
Community interactions. 

     

Thriving 
Communities 

 Highfields designated as a Regenerative Priority 
Neighbourhood. Increase energy efficiency of homes. Promote 
digital inclusion and activities that bring communities together 
to help tackle poverty and reduce social isolation. Develop 
community outreach spaces. 

 Expand local groups to further develop the diverse offers open 
to all. Listen and inform communities through Your Life 
Doncaster. 

     

Fairness, Health 
& Wellbeing 

 Promote the Enhanced Access offer from the Primary Care 
Network – providing health/wellbeing services in community 
settings. Pilot ‘bump’ sessions to reduce social isolation. Promote 
Family Hubs and their services. 

 Collaboration with health partners and VCFS to provide strong 
community offers around access to mental, physical, and 
social health. Continue to develop information & guidance, 
Education, training, and employment offer by utilising the 
growing partnerships across the East. 

     

Children & 
Young People / 
Youth Provision 

 EPIC and Holiday Activity & Food programme. Promote 
Operation Anticipate, diverting young people from crime/ASB. 
Recruit more & co-locate youth workers to Your Family teams. 

 
 
 
 

Collaborate with young people to develop meaningful activities 
that support mental, physical, and social health in their local 
communities. 

 

 

    

P
age 14



 

THEMES  SOUTH LOCALITY  CENTRAL LOCALITY 
     

Environment, 
Sustainability & 
Green Spaces 

 Focus on the needs of housing and transport across the south, 
whilst continuing to develop and enhance the green spaces. 

 Work with communities to protect and enhance our environment 
and provide access to transport, housing, & digital 
connectivity across our communities. 

     

Community 
Safety 

 Continue the work in the South to reduce crime and ASB. 
Educate on the harms of alcohol and substance misuse and 
hep those that are homeless in the South community. 

 Collaborate with partners and local communities to tackle 
community safety issues, providing support, interventions, and 
enforcement where it is needed most. 

     

Thriving 
Communities 

 Continue to listen and provide quality information to our South 
communities through Your Life Doncaster and support through 
collaboration further opportunities for each south community. 

 Actively support residents and VCFS groups to build 
community spirit, cohesion, and participation across our 
communities. 

     

Fairness, Health 
& Wellbeing 

 Understand the physical, mental, and social health needs across 
the South. Through partner collaboration provide quality 
information and guidance and support available to deal with the 
cost of living. 

 Respond, support, and deliver improvements in health, care, 
and support, listening to resident concerns and acting on things 
that matter to them compassionately and fairly. 

     

Support for local 
businesses; 
Town Centres, 
& Regeneration 

 Support and listen to our local businesses and Town centres to 
thrive through workforce development and investment. 

 Promote and support business enterprise and investment to 
sustain and diversify the local offer. 

 

     

Children & 
Young People / 
Youth Provision 

 Continue to deliver quality provision for all young people 
supporting their mental, physical health and wellbeing, and 
giving them resources to thrive. 

  

 

  

P
age 15



Equality, Diversity, Inclusion and Fairness 
 

These terms each have their own definitions but are often understood to mean 
different things and used interchangeably. 

Avoiding any formal definitions, in basic terms here is what we mean: 

• Equality is about treating people the same in status, giving them the same 
rights as everyone else. 

• Diversity recognises that although people have things in common, they can 
be different in many ways.  

• Inclusion is where those differences are seen as a benefit and so considering 
a range of perspectives can lead to better decisions.  

• Fairness is about being impartial, and treatment or behaviour without 
favouritism or discrimination. 

Together they form the basis of our approach to service delivery. In simple terms, 
it is about: 

• Continuing to embed equality, diversity, inclusion, and fairness across the 
Council in everything we do. 

• Ensuring that everybody has the same opportunity to benefit – by considering 
individual needs and tailoring provision or response accordingly. 

• Ensuring awareness of the impact of bias, both conscious and unconscious; 
and understanding the challenges and barriers that people face, so we can 
overcome them.  

• Ensuring that people are treated fairly, respectfully and are protected from 
discrimination, bullying or harassment. 

• Promoting a culture where people get the dignity and respect they deserve 
and that their differences are celebrated. 

 

 

Priority 3. Create a fairer, kinder, more inclusive city 
   

   

 

See more detail on our website: https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/the-council-
democracy/equality-and-inclusion

  

  

Our Vision 

Doncaster is an open, diverse, and inclusive borough that respects and values 

differences. A place where people from different backgrounds and with different 

views work together to create opportunity for everyone to thrive and succeed. 

Key Activity 

• Respond to the Fairness and Wellbeing Commission recommendations.  

• Coordinate the Doncaster Choose Kindness Movement – encouraging 

closer community bonds and strengthening community cohesion; to 

include an Inclusion Charter and a commitment to equitable and inclusive 

education and training for all.  

• Develop a LGA Equalities Framework baseline and action plan which will 

include new EDI Objectives for the organisation. 

• Support the development of a refreshed Inclusion and Fairness Forum.  

• Deliver statutory public health duties, including mobilisation of new 

services, action on the wider determinants of health. 

• Embed Doncaster’s compassionate approach to health within new and 

existing programmes, e.g., Doncaster's Family Food Programme – 

supporting nutritional knowledge, eating behaviours, cooking skills, and 

family relationships with food and body.  

Our Roles 

As a community leader, we will support Team Doncaster to take a relentless 

approach to equalities, tackling deprivation and supporting residents to maximise 

their income. 

As a service deliverer, we will ensure services are shaped by equality, diversity, 

inclusion and fairness objectives and we target resources to where they are most 

needed. 

As an employer, we will be open and inclusive and champion diversity. 

P
age 16

https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/the-council-democracy/equality-and-inclusion
https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/the-council-democracy/equality-and-inclusion


PEOPLE-FOCUSED PRIORITIES 

Priority 4. Improve outcomes in adult social care 

 

 

 

Priority 5. Co-deliver an impactful NHS partnership 

 

Priority 6. Improve outcomes for children through a high-performing children’s directorate 

 

• Increase opportunities for local people with lived experience of care and 
support to influence our approach – including service improvement and 
recruitment. 

• Make information and advice about rights (including to independent 
advocacy), responsibilities and sources of support routinely available. 

• Improve local, timely access to care and support making sure we listen to 
people seeking support, their families, and local communities to understand 
what matters most to them. 

• Create and sustain more employment opportunities for disabled people. 

• Increase the choice and control people have over their support at home, 
whether they choose to have a direct payment or to have care and support 
arranged by the council. 

• Develop and support the wellbeing of our adult social care workforce so 
they can support Doncaster people to live their best lives. 

• Develop and implement a joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy so that people 
from all communities & backgrounds are more likely to enjoy a healthy life 
expectancy. 

• Use evidence from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment to target 
resources where they are most effective in increasing prevention and 
reducing inequality. 

• Work together to join up information, advice, and support in local 
neighbourhoods. 

• Support more people to access care and treatment close to where they live. 

• Help people to return home more quickly following stays in hospital or 
mental health settings. 

• Reduce the number of people living in care and treatment settings with 
unnecessary restrictions on their liberty. 

• Improve identification and recognition of informal carers, promoting their 
rights and connecting them with information, advice, and support to improve 
independence and wellbeing. 

Ambitions 

• Children are given the very best start 
in life by their parents and carers 
who are supported to optimise their 
child’s development. 

• Children enjoy good health and 
receive effective services as needed 
to optimise independence and the 
best health outcomes. 

• Children are well prepared for 
adulthood, access and engage in 
education, employment and training 
and contribute to their community 
positively.  

• Children live safely and happily 
within their families and where they 
cannot live at home, we are good 
corporate parents. 

Drive Social Care practice improvement 

• Implement the Quality Improvement plan and Practice improvement plan. 

• A clear focus on capturing impact for children/families ensuring the changes are long lasting and go beyond processes. 

• Embed the Learning Organisation Framework including action learning sets around practice, audit & embedding learning.  

Develop an effective workforce strategy 

• Address challenges linked to recruitment & retention, recognising hard to recruit roles and developing a ‘grow your own’ 
policy.  

• Better communicate our unique selling points, and succession planning through growth and development opportunities. 

• Recognise and celebrate the impact our staff have on the children, families, and communities of Doncaster. 

• Take positive action to ensure that we have a diverse workforce which reflects our children, communities, and families. 

Locality Working 

• Complete a baseline of service configuration/working practices across the four localities that reflects key policy drivers. 

• Increase the use of shared assessments & family network meetings, with a focus on early intervention and prevention. 

• Pilot locality-based multi-disciplinary teams to support children and young people with SEND. 

• Support the development of the new Community Prevention Model. 

P
age 17



PLACE-FOCUSED PRIORITIES 

Priority 7. Develop our South Yorkshire Airport City 

  

Priority 8. Deliver Major Projects 

   

Priority 9. Create safer, stronger, cleaner neighbourhoods 

 

  

• Identify and appoint an airport operator and get the airport re-opened. 

• Support private investors to maximise the potential for the whole Gateway East investment zone. 

• Undertake a joint masterplanning process and develop a green airport city cluster. 

• Develop a local employment academy to ensure adequate labour supply to fulfil the growth potential at the airport. 

•  

• Deliver Levelling Up Fund round 1 schemes. 
o Waterfront East site remediation, start temporary public realm installation. 
o Finalise renovation and restoration of the Market’s Corn Exchange. 
o Improve 70 shop fronts around the heritage city zone (Scott Lane). 
o Support private sector renovation of St James’ baths into a leisure, spa, and baths facility. 
o Demolition of the old library, replaced with quality public realm. 

• Deliver Town Deal programmes.  
o City Gateway £27m: Continue design work, complete acquisitions, commence construction of a new mixed-use building and further public realm 

improvements at the rail station. 
o Stainforth £22m: Start restoration of the headstock structures & secure the site. Start works to the new link road connecting East Lane and Waggons Way. 

• Deliver City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement schemes.  
o Develop options for reducing journey times around Cleveland Street and Sidings roundabout, City centre (£6m).  
o Improve accessibility to Mexborough town centre with various transport interventions e.g., public transport improvements (£11m).  
o Develop options to improve connectivity & accessibility in northern communities through active travel e.g. pedestrian crossings, safer school routes (£10m). 
o Develop options to improve road capacity and connections to employment sites via sustainable transport in eastern Doncaster (£12m). 

• Deliver a new Neighbourhood Response model to deploy resources in priority neighbourhoods, with an emphasis on enforcement activity and tackling 
antisocial behaviour.  

• Deliver proactive and robust regulatory services to achieve compliance with legislation, ensuring legitimate businesses thrive and non-compliant businesses 
are actively targeted for intervention.  

• Deliver a prioritised road and footpath repair and maintenance programme to ensure our highways are safe and claims against the Council are minimised. 

• Deliver targeted services to increase the amount of housing (social & private) – e.g., Planning function and Council House build programme. 

• Deliver a programme to improve standards within the supported housing sector – including property inspections of non-commissioned and commissioned 
supported accommodation. 

• Continue to investigate all fly-tipping reports and remove waste within 7 days from public areas. 

P
age 18



Priority 10: Deliver Council contributions to Team Doncaster strategies

  

 
   
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
      

  

Education and Skills Strategy 
• Launch a new skills and training offer at the former Rail College site 

at Lakeside.  

• Deliver another Remake Learning Festival, plus smaller scale ‘pop-
up’ activity. 

• Develop plans for a new Higher Education offer linked to our industry 
specialisms.  

• Implement an All-age Careers Hub, bringing together existing and 
new careers education, information, and guidance. 

• Develop new metrics to measure the impact of our ecosystems 
approach. 

• Support the establishment of the new University Technical College 
focusing on Health Sciences & Green Technologies. 

• Deliver a Doncaster Education Leadership Programme for 
Headteachers and Principals.  

• Develop an equitable and Inclusive Lifelong Learning for all 
approach, enabling young people to access learning as close to 
home as possible and within their own communities. 

Culture Strategy 
• Develop a narrative and brand for Doncaster’s culture offer. 

• Improve awareness of Doncaster’s culture offer across all 
communities. 

• Create a shared Investment pipeline to coordinate fundings bids. 

• Identify funding risks and opportunities and encourage 
investment. 

• Deliver our significant cultural events programme. 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
• Provide funding for local community groups to help increase 

physical activity 

• Further work to support walking groups and our Active Schools 
Framework. 

• Deliver our All-Age Carer's strategy. 

• Deliver our Strategic Commissioning function – adopting a 
locality approach to the provision of support to people 
experiencing homelessness, older people, people with learning 
disabilities and mental health issues. 

• Support access to parks, and leisure and cultural opportunities 
for the more vulnerable members of our communities that need 
support to do so.  

P
age 19



 

      

 

 

Economic Strategy 
• Deliver Investment Zone sites in Thorne, city centre, Carcroft & 

Hatfield/Stainforth. 

• Develop our Long-Term City Centre Plan to access additional 
Government funding. 

• Develop further our Levelling Up Fund Round 3 Proposals 

• Undertake deep dive analysis as part of the city centre Levelling 
up partnerships. 

• Creation of industry sector profiles – information on leading 
companies, market forces, performance trends, and forecasts. 

• Provide support to existing and prospective businesses via our 
Business Doncaster service. 

Housing Strategy 
• Facilitate private sector housing delivery.  

• Deliver the Council house build programme Phase 2 (start on 
site, 123 units over 2 years). 

• Undertake design and approval phase of the Bungalow and 
Small sites programme. 

• Undertake options appraisal for a Strategic Partnership for 
mixed-tenure development. 

• Develop and deliver the Royal Estate Improvement. Programme 
following a housing option appraisal. 

• Work with private sector housing landlords to improve 
standards. 

• Ensure supported housing for vulnerable people is up to 
standard. 

Environment and Sustainability Strategy 
• Review strategic actions & identify additional projects/initiatives. 

• Produce a Carbon Reduction plan for reducing our emissions. 

• Work with private landowners to plant more trees.  

• Further greenspace naturalisation. 

• Replace more petrol/diesel fleet vehicles with electric vehicles. 

• Increase the provision of electric vehicle charging facilities. 

• Maximise the energy efficiency of Council homes and buildings. 

• Support private homeowners and businesses to maximise the 
energy efficiency of their homes and buildings. 

• Improve property-level flood resilience to residential areas. 

• Maximise recycling by the Council, residents, and businesses.  

• Support the development of South Yorkshire’s Local Nature 
Recovery Strategy, embedding strategic local priorities and 
opportunities. 

• Agree corporate policies and specific objectives for delivering the 
Council’s Biodiversity Duty. 

• Ensure developments deliver biodiversity net gains and support 
further Council and private habitat banks in locations where they 
will have the best outcomes for nature recovery. 

• Deliver our parks improvement programme (including over 
£3million of investment) in Denaby, Campsall, Town, Hexthorpe, 
Edlington. 

P
age 20



ARMS-LENGTH MANAGEMENT ORGANISATIONS 

St Leger Homes of Doncaster (SLHD)  

SLHD hold management responsibility for all council homes, including the allocation of homes to applicants and property maintenance. They also provide 
Doncaster’s homelessness service, a private lettings agency and resident employment and education/training services. Full details available at 
www.stlegerhomes.co.uk. 
 

PEOPLE    Our Aim – to get it right for our customers and staff 

• Invest in our communication channels; increase opportunities to access our services when and how it suits you. 

• Do more than providing homes; by offering support to sustain your home and deal with the cost-of-living crisis.  

• Listen and communicate effectively, ensuring we have a courteous, compassionate, and skilled workforce.  

• Work hard to tackle homelessness – develop a new Preventing Homelessness Strategy for 2024-29. 

• Understand the needs and aspirations of our tenants and staff and delivering for them. 

HOMES   Our Aim – to provide good quality, safe homes at a rent you can afford 

• Ensure tenants are satisfied with the homes and services we provide 

• Deliver an efficient and effective repairs and maintenance service 

• Make sure our homes are safe and free from hazards 

• Reduce damp mould and condensation in our homes and making them more energy efficient 

• Achieve the highest standards of building safety and compliance 

COMMUNITIES   Our Aim – to help build communities, not just houses 

• Increase engagement with the diverse communities of Doncaster. 

• Seek TPAS exemplar status, ensure TPAS and the ‘One Voice’ Forum are the conduit to ensure genuine effective tenant influence.  

• Provide safer communities through tackling and reducing antisocial behaviour and crime. 

• Provide communal halls and spaces which the community value. 

• Support the Council to regenerate communities.  

PARTNERSHIPS   Our Aim – to work with others to deliver Doncaster’s ‘Thriving people, places and planet’ ambition 

• Tackle climate change by working to become carbon neutral in the way we work and how we use stock and materials.  

• Contribute to the Borough Strategy priorities especially: Supporting training and skills, economic regeneration, social care,                                                                   
locality working; making Doncaster a fairer and more inclusive place.  

• Work with other social and private landlords to ensure those facing homelessness have a safe and secure home.  
 

 

P
age 21

http://www.stlegerhomes.co.uk/


Doncaster Culture & Leisure Trust (DCLT)  

DCLT is a registered charity delivering premier leisure provision venues across Doncaster. They offer a diverse range of health, fitness, leisure, and 
entertainment activities with the goal of helping to achieve a healthier community across Doncaster. https://www.dclt.co.uk/  

Mission Striving for Healthier Communities  
  

Vision Increased opportunity and activity in sport, leisure, and culture, to improve the lifestyles of our customers, colleagues, and stakeholders. 
 

Value our people Our colleagues, customers, stakeholders & partners 

• Increased engagement with staff to be an employer of choice. 

• Deliver the Workforce Training, Development & Wellbeing Plan that achieves a strong team ethos and culture, rooted in respect and inclusivity.  

• Develop activities that reach our wider communities, promoting and delivering activities that are both accessible and affordable. 

• Review and deliver a governance review to recruit new Trustees with partners and stakeholders, to support the current Board and Leadership Team to 
deliver the Business Plan 2024-2027. 

Open and Honest Improve our social impact & value of services through transparent practice 

• Embed and re-invent attitudes to leisure through an approach of preventative care in service delivery. Deliver improvement of health and wellbeing 
responding to the communities we serve. 

• Improve the customer experience through high quality services and facilities.  

• Build capacity and resource for positive intervention in the voluntary sector for the support of the delivery of local services.  

• Measure and improve our social impact and value of our service. 

Innovative Respond and develop local solutions for our communities 

• Develop our relationship with Primary Care Doncaster to support local GP services in our venues and through our activities.  

• Embed and invest in digital solutions across our venues to improve service delivery, with increased engagement and income generation. 

• Advocate and raise the importance of physical and mental wellbeing through participation in leisure and cultural activity on behalf of the city. 

• Commitment to net zero – working towards a minimum of 50% of our venues having at least one form of renewable energy generation.  

Commercial Generate income of a level to invest and improve our leisure & cultural offer 

• Identify, create, and deliver new income streams to achieve reduced direct service costs for all venues under the portfolio. 

• Investment in facilities and business development activities.  

• Local procurement of suppliers and contractors to contribute and support the local economy. 

• Source relevant funding and grants to capitalise on opportunities through collaboration and joint bids to support our most vulnerable communities. 
 

  

P
age 22

https://www.dclt.co.uk/


MONITORING PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE 

 

 

      
Big picture 

challenges and 
ambitions 

 

Council 
contributions to 
DDT, Mayoral 
priorities, and 

ways of working 

Area-specific plans 
to tackle area-
specific issues 

Breakdown of 
Corporate Plan 

into different 
service areas 

Individual 
contributions to 

Service, Directorate 
and Corporate 

priorities 

Managed 
Organisation 

Leaders 

Managed by 
Directors 

Managed by 
Directors and 

Locality Managers 

Managed by 
Directors and 

Heads of Service 

Managed by  
People Managers 

Our Service Standards 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Individual 
Targets 

and PDRs 
 

Directorate 
and 

Service 
Plans 

Locality 
Plans 

Corpora
te Plan Delivering 

Doncaster 
Together 

The Council will monitor its progress and performance via IT 
Performance Management Framework with Lead Officers presenting 
update reports throughout the year to the appropriate leadership team for 
review and challenge. 

Regenerative Council 

• Average no. days to process new housing benefit claims 
• Average no. days to process new council tax support application claims 
• Average customer wait time 
• % of telephone calls answered within 150 seconds 
• % of council tax collected in-year 

2. Developing the skills to thrive in life and work 

• % of children with first choice Secondary school placements. 
• % of children with first choice Primary school placements.  
• No. children in Elective Home Education. 
• No. refugees (both asylum and resettlement) supported into ESOL and/or 

employment. 
• % of 16/17 year olds not meeting the duty to participate. 
• Secondary schools’ persistent absent rate. 
• % Education, Health, and Care Plans issued within 20 weeks (excl. exception 

cases). 
• % of children missing in education where referrals are closed following case work. 

• Area of Local Authority Land allowed to naturalise/wildflower 
• % of successful household waste and recycling collections 
• No. homes retrofitted to improve energy efficiency 

1. Tackling climate change 

• % of non-domestic rates collected. 
• Overall investment gained (into and within Doncaster). 
• Overall new inward investment gained into Doncaster with the support of 

Business Doncaster. 
• % of planning applications processed within timescales: Major Applications 
• Increase in city centre footfall figures. 
• % of Local Authority spend with Doncaster companies/suppliers. 
• No. new jobs created in the borough with an annual salary of over £31k through 

Business Doncaster inward investment, property, and key account activity. 
• No. people with a learning disability helped into work. 

 
3. Making Doncaster the best place to do business 
and create good jobs 

P
age 23



   

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

• No. permanent admissions to residential & nursing care homes, per 100,000 population. 
• % of Adult Social Care provision with Care Quality Commission Good/Outstanding rating 
• % of contraception that is LARC (Long-Acting Reversible Contraceptives) 
• % of new birth visits completed within 14 days (Universal Partnership Plus families). 
• % of successful alcohol treatment completions 
• Average no. days to complete Adult Social Care Needs Assessment. 
• Tobacco Control: % of 4-week quit rate recorded by the Yorkshire Smoke-free service. 
• % of adults with learning disabilities who live in their own home or with their family. 
• Average no. days to complete OT assessments. 
• % of people who are still at home 91 days after their period of re-enablement.  
• % of mothers that quit smoking during pregnancy. 
• No. carer’s assessments completed. 
• Average no. days from housing adaptation request to completion. 

4. Building opportunities for healthier, happier, 
and longer lives for all   

6. Nurturing a child and family-friendly borough 

• % of children accessing their entitlement for free childcare (3- & 4-year-olds). 
• % of children accessing their entitlement to free childcare (2-year-olds). 
• No. referrals into ‘your family’ teams. 
• School Nursing: No. schools with a Health Profile. 
• No. early intervention cases managed and supported by the Stronger Communities 

Service.  
• No. referrals processed in 24 hours. 
• No. children in care per 10,000 population.  
• % of children in care who achieve legal permanence via adoption, SGO or CAO. 
• Children under 18 with a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 population. 
• Increase in confidence and ability of parents/carers to support and provide for their 

family evidenced through the Outcome Star - Family Star. 
• No. external residential placements. 
• % of care leavers in employment, training, and education (age 19-21 years).  
• % of cases where the lead social worker has seen the child/young person within 

timescales specified in the CP plan.  
• No. children in need per 10,000 population 
• % of single assessments completed within 45 days.  
• Referrals to Children's Services that are repeat referrals within 12 months.  
• No. children receiving a Multi-Service Early Help support per 10,000 population. 
• No. referrals per 10,000 population. 
• No. wellbeing cases handled by Wellbeing Team within the Communities Service. 

5. Creating safer, stronger, greener, and cleaner 
communities where everyone belongs 

• Net additional homes provided (Council and private sector). 
• No. identified rough sleepers within the month. 
• % of people feeling safer after a safeguarding intervention. 
• Safeguarding: duration (average days – referral to completed s42). 
• No. high-risk cases referred to MARAC. 
• No. referrals to the Domestic Abuse Hub.  
• No. victims of ASB being provided with a SPOC and individual support plan. 
• No. people/families supported to prevent or tackle ASB, hate crime, or low-level 

crime. 
• % of safeguarding concerns and enquiries that are repeats in a 12-month period. 
• No. veterans identified and supported within the Communities service. 
• No. fixed penalty notices and Community Protection Notices issued.  
• No. incidents attended by the Neighbourhood Response Team. 
• % of fly-tips investigated and removed within 7 days from public areas. 
• % of redeployable cameras installed within a 28-day timescale. 
• % of Environmental Permitting regulations permit visits completed within DEFRA 

timescales. 
• % of Licensing Act 2003 applications processed within statutory timescales. 
• Recycling rate for household domestic waste. 
• No. of parks with 'Green Flag' status. 
• % of quarterly mechanical playground inspections completed. 

• % of principal roads not requiring major maintenance. 
• % of non-principal roads not requiring major maintenance. 
• % of estate roads in good to fair condition. 
• National highways transportation survey highways maintenance overall satisfaction 

score. 

7. Building transport and digital connections 
fit for the future 

• Customer satisfaction levels reported at Archives. 
• Customer satisfaction levels reported at Danum Gallery Library and Museum. 
• No. people volunteering in Culture Services to improve their skills 
• No. people reporting reduction in social isolation by accessing Culture Services. 

8. Promoting the borough and its cultural, 
sporting and heritage opportunities  P

age 24



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

ANNEX: LOCALITY PLANS (SUMMARY) 

Page 25



Page 26



 
 

 

 

Page 27



 

Page 28



 

Report 
 

 

5th February 2024 

To the Chair and Members of the  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Consideration of the Mayor’s Budget Proposals 2024/25– 

2027/28 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision 

The Mayor 
 

All Yes 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to consider and respond to the Mayor’s draft budget 

proposals 2024/25 to 2027/28 and enable the Mayor to take account of this 
response when presenting her proposals to Full Council on 26th February, 2024. 

 
 
EXEMPT REPORT 

 
2. The report is not exempt. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3. That the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC):  

 
i. Consider and respond to the Mayor’s draft budget proposals;  

 
ii. Adopts the key questions identified at Paragraph 8 as a focus for its 

review; and  
 

iii. Adopts the guidance detailed at Paragraphs 12 and 13 for effectively 
reviewing the Mayor’s budget proposals. 

 
 

 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
4. Consideration of the budget proposals improves openness and transparency and 

enables elected Members to publicly hold the Executive to account in relation to 
the impact on the quality and delivery of services.  Elected Members are able to 
reflect the concerns of the citizens and communities they represent throughout 
this process. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
5. In accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework, Overview and Scrutiny is 

required to consider and provide a response to the Mayor in respect of the budget 
proposals prior to consideration at Full Council on 26th February 2024.  The 
formal proposals will be made available to Members prior to the OSMC meeting. 
 

6. To ensure OSMC can add value to the Council’s budget setting process and take 
a holistic view of the proposals as in previous years it has been agreed that the 
Committee will focus on the following four issues:  

 

i. To what extent are the Mayor’s proposals in line with Central Government 
policy, pressures and directives?  
 

ii. To what extent will the Mayor’s proposal ensure that the Council is able to 
contribute to the outcomes detailed within Doncaster Delivering Together 
(DDT) and the Corporate Plan bearing in mind the constraints detailed at 
i. above?  

 
iii. To what extent do the Mayor’s proposals demonstrate that the results of 

any consultation, research or other evidence have been taken into 
account?  

 
iv. To what extent are the challenges in delivering the savings within the 

timescales and the capacity to deliver services with reduced resources 
being addressed?  
 

7. Beneath each of these broad themes there are a number of important issues that 
Members may wish to consider such as how the proposed changes to services 
will be delivered in practice, where are the key risks and challenges in delivering 
these savings, how are some of the financial and performance issues raised in 
the quarterly reports to OSMC being addressed?  
 

8. It is recommended that as in previous years the Committee continues to follow 
these four lines of enquiry in relation to the Mayor’s budget proposals.  

 

Guidance for Overview and Scrutiny Members.  
 

9. Detailed below is some guidance that may assist Members in undertaking 
Overview and Scrutiny of the budget setting process.  

Page 30



A. Adding Value to the Budget Setting Process  
 

10. The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) highlights “four key roles and 
areas where scrutiny can add value to the Council’s management of its finances”.  
 
i. Scrutiny can challenge whether the processes are effective and 

accessible - is there a level of integration between corporate and service 
planning and performance and financial management?  
 

ii. Overview and Scrutiny can test out and make explicit whether the Council 
is directing its resources effectively to meet its priorities and demonstrate 
whether it is achieving value for money.  The Committee may want to 
satisfy itself that any proposals are aligned to corporate priorities and seek 
to deliver value for money services.  
 

iii. Scrutiny can challenge how resources are allocated, monitor how they are 
used, and examine their impact.  Overview and Scrutiny may wish to 
challenge the assumptions behind the budget strategy and the key 
strategic considerations that have gone in to building up the budget e.g. 
what issues (such as consultation) informed decisions around the budget? 
How will service changes be delivered and how will they be monitored?  

 

iv. Overview and Scrutiny provides an additional and transparent challenge 
to the Executive’s management of the Council’s finances.  Overview and 
Scrutiny is a key mechanism enabling Councillors to represent the views 
of their constituents and other organisations to the Executive and Local 
Authority. This enables views to be taken into account in policy 
development and expressed through the budget. Councillors are then able 
to feed back to the public where informed choices have been made and 
the reasons for doing this.  

 

B. Avoiding Common Pitfalls  
 

13.  To respond effectively to the Mayor’s proposals and avoid some common pitfalls 
OSMC may wish to take account of the following issues that have been identified 
through best practice Scrutiny research:  
 
i. Understanding the purpose of Overview and Scrutiny.  Scrutiny’s role is 

not a political process or a means of putting forward an alternative budget. 
Instead OSMC may wish to explore the extent to which the proposals; 
align with the key priorities of the Borough, are based on sound reasoning, 
take account of the views of the public and will deliver effective value for 
money services particularly during a time of reduced resources.  
 

ii. Remain Strategic – Overview and Scrutiny should focus on the strategic 
budget assumptions and impact they will have on services.  Detailed line-
by-line analysis will obscure the Scrutiny process and make it difficult to 
see the full picture and focus on the wider outcomes.  Overview and 
Scrutiny may wish to make recommendations for changes (but not 

Page 31



alternative proposals) or for the inclusion of additional considerations 
within the budget.  
 

iii. Link to Stated Priorities – Overview and Scrutiny should examine how the 
proposals align with those priorities already agreed within Doncaster 
Delivering Together.   

 

Next Steps  
 

14. Once the Committee has agreed its response this will be communicated to the 
Mayor and provide an opportunity for any comments to be considered prior to 
the proposals being presented to Full Council. 

 
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
15. No other options have been considered. 

 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 
 
16. The process identified for reviewing the budget will ensure there is a clear 

understanding of Overview and Scrutiny’s role and how the review will be 
undertaken. 

 
 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
17. The Council’s budget will ultimately support and impact on all of the priority 

outcomes. In terms of its role in reviewing the budget proposals this will support 
the outcome of “Working with our partners we will provide strong leadership and 
governance”. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS (Officer Initials: SRF Date:18.01.24). 
 
18. The role of Overview and Scrutiny in the Council’s budget setting process is 

detailed within the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules.  
 

19. The Executive is required to provide its budget proposals (including details of any 
consultations it has undertaken) to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel or 
Management Committee, which will be given at least 4 weeks to respond to those 
proposals.  
 

20. Not less than 4 weeks later, the Executive will report its budget proposal to the 
Full Council showing how any response from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and the outcome of consultation, research or investigations were 
taken into account. 

 

Page 32



 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS (Officer Initials: MS Date:24/01/24). 
 
21. There are no specific financial implications contained in this report. The specific 

financial implications relating to the budget are contained in the Mayor’s draft 
budget proposals. 

 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Officer Initials: RH Date:18/01/24). 
 
22. There are no specific Human Resource implications contained in this report. The 

specific financial implications relating to the budget are contained in the Mayor’s 
draft budget proposals. 

 
 
TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS (Officer Initials: PW Date: 23/01/24). 
 
23. There are no specific technology implications in relation to Overview and Scrutiny 

consideration of the Mayor’s budget proposals.   

 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

24. There is a risk that responding to the Mayor’s draft budget proposals may be 

driven by party politics or result in the development of alternative budget 

proposals both of which are incompatible with the role of Overview and Scrutiny. 

The development of specific questions based around reviewing how the Mayor’s 

proposals take account of national policy context, are evidence based and link to 

wider priorities will seek to ensure the process remains focused and appropriate.  

 

CONSULTATION 

25. Prior to the Mayor’s draft budget proposals being made available to this meeting, 
the Committee met with the Director for Corporate Resources and Assistant 
Director of Finance to discuss proposals set out in the report. In accordance with 
the Councils Constitution this provides a 4-week consultation period for the 
Council’s Scrutiny function. 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
26. The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny/Local Government Information Unit/the 

Chartered Institute of Finance and Accountancy Guidance, “On the Money”. 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

CfGS - Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 
DDT – Doncaster Delivering Together 

Page 33



 
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS  
Andrew Sercombe, Governance Manager Tel: 01302 734354. Email: 
andrew.sercombe@doncaster.gov.uk  
Caroline Martin, Senior Governance Officer Tel: 01302 734941 Email: 
christine.rothwell@doncaster.gov.uk  
Caroline Martin, Senior Governance Officer Tel: 01302 735682 Email: 
caroline.martin@doncaster.gov.uk  

 
Scott Fawcus 

Assistant Director of Legal & Democratic Services 

Page 34

mailto:andrew.sercombe@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:christine.rothwell@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:caroline.martin@doncaster.gov.uk


  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PLAN 2023/24 
 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

April 

Monday 17th April at 1pm 
Informal briefing session MS 

Teams 
 

Wednesday 19th April at 
4pm Informal Briefing  

Session MS Teams 

Monday 24th April 2023 
10am 

MS Teams 
Members briefing (CR) 

 

• Doncaster Delivering 
Together (DDT) Investment 
Plan (c ) 

 

• Transition of Children 
Social Care (c) 

• Update briefing on 
Government response 
Stable homes built on love 

• Improving Council 
housing stock and How St 
Leger Homes ensure VFM 
and work standards on 
improvement 
programmes; (c ) 

• Repairs Excellence ph 2 
(c) 

 

  
Thursday 20th April 2023, 

2pm, Informal Briefing 
Joint Meeting with C&E 

 
Thursday 20th April 2023, 

2pm, Informal Briefing 
Joint Meeting with CYP 

  • Play Parks Strategy 
 

• Play Parks Strategy 

  

Wednesday 26th April 2023 
at 12pm, Informal Briefing 

session, MS Teams – 
CANCELLED 

 
 

  

• Referrals – school 
experience update Social 
Care Front Door – 
meeting with 
headteachers 
 

• Update on overview of 
social care theme 
pressure points 

 
 

  
Thursday 27th April 2023 at 

4.30pm MS Teams or 
Council Chamber TBC 

 
 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

  

• Youth Council Priorities 
(and for information 
Children and Young 
Peoples Plan).(c) 

• Youth Offer (c) 

  

  
 

Thursday 27th April 2023 at 
10am MS Teams Briefing 
Session 

  

   

• SEND inspection 
framework and 
Government response to 
Green Paper 

  

May 

 
Thursday 11th May 2023 at 

10am  
Council Chamber (CR) 

 

Tuesday 23rd May 2023 
 at 1.30pm 

Briefing Session  
MS Teams (CM) 

 

 

• Bentley and Rossington 
Primary Care estate 
developments ICB 

• Public Health Protection 
Update  

 
• Local Lettings Policy 

Gypsy and Traveller Pitch 
Allocation Policy 

 

 
Thursday 25th May 2023 

at 10am, MS Team 
   

 Work Planning    

     

     

June 

Thursday 1st June 2023 at 
10am  

Council Chamber 
 

Thursday 15th June 2023 at 
4pm, MS Teams 

Thursday 6th June 2023 at 
2pm, MS Teams 

Thursday 1st June 2023 
 at 2pm, MS Teams 

• Work Planning  • Work Planning • Work Planning • Work Planning 

P
age 36



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

Thursday 1th June 2023 at 
11am, Council Chamber (CM) 

  

Friday 30th June 2023 
at 10.30am 

Briefing Session 
MS Teams (CM) 

 

• Youth Justice Plan   
• Transport (invite to 

SYMCA) (c) 
 

 
Thursday 29th June 2023 at 

10am, Council Chamber 
(CM/AT) 

    

 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Members 
Cole and Houlbrook) (c) 

• Agree Scrutiny Work Plan 

    

July 

 
Thursday 20th July 2023 at 

10am, MS Teams (CM) 

Thursday 6th July 2023 at 
10am, Members Briefing, 

Council Chamber (CR) 

Thursday 27th July 2023 at 
4.30pm, MS Teams (CM) 

Monday 17th July 2023 at 
1.30pm, Council Chamber 

(CR) 
 

• St Leger Homes future 
priorities and services (R&H 
O&S to be invited) (c) 

• Joint Strategic Needs 
Report:  

• Summary of specific 
areas of data  

• What’s new/ 
performance 
deterioration (c) 

• Child Exploitation 

• Local Lettings Policy  

• Gypsy and Traveller Pitch 
Allocation Policy (c) 

 

Aug 

    
Thursday 3rd August 2023 at 
10am Briefing Session MS 

Teams (CM) 

    

• Community Assets – 
Mary Woollet Centre 

 

• Update on 
recommendations from 
the Corporate Assets 
Policy Review 

 

• Local Flood Risk 
Management Strategy – 

P
age 37



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

outline pre 5th October 
meeting 

 

• PSPO – Town Centre – 
pre cabinet decision 

 

 
Wednesday, 23rd August 

2023, 10am 
Sheffield Council (CR) 

   

 
• JHOSC (Chair only to 

attend) 
 

   

Sept 

Thursday 7th September 2023 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 28th September 
2023 at 2pm, Council 

Chamber (CM) 

Wednesday 20th September 
2023 at 9.30am 
Site Visit  (CR) 

  

• Annual Compliments and 
Complaints (c)  

• Mental Health aged 18 to 
25 Invite PFG (c) 

• Site visit to Adwick Family 
Hub (c) 
 

  

Thursday 7th September 2023 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

 
   

 

• Fairness and Wellbeing 
Commission (c) 
 

 
   

  
 Monday 9th October 2023, 

12:30pm, MS Teams (CM) 
  

   

• Referrals – school 
experience update Social 
Care Front Door – 
meeting with 
headteachers (c ) 
 

  

Oct 
Thursday 12th October 2023 
 at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 26th October 2023 
at 10am, MS Teams  

Tuesday 31st October 2023 
at 4.30pm Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 19th October 2023 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 5th October 
2023 at 10am Council 
Chamber (CM) 

P
age 38



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Member 
Blackham) (c) 

• JHOSC – Chair only as 
appointed Member on 
Committee 

• Child Poverty report on 
discussions from site visit  
Youth Council to attend (c) 

• Housing - New regulatory 
regime for social housing 

• Housing biodiversity  
 

• Safer Doncaster 
Partnership (c) 
o Update from February 

position focus on Retail 
Crime 

 

• Flood Risk Management 
Strategy Pre-Cabinet 
decision (c) 

Nov 

Thursday 2nd November 2023 
at 10am, MS Teams/Council 

Chamber TBC (CR) 

Cancelled Wednesday 22nd 
November 2023 at 2pm, 

Sheffield  
   

• Customer Experience 
Strategy (c) 

 
   

Tuesday 7th November 2023 at 
2pm, MS Teams (CR) 

Thursday 23rd November 
2023 at 10am  

Council Chamber (CM) 
   

• Update on Localities 

• Community Prevention 
Model 

o Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Hospital 
Trust and.  Areas for 
consideration to be 
agreed:  

o A&E position  
o Waiting    lists  
o Staff Recruitment and 

Retention 
• Winter planning (c) 

 

   

Monday 27th November 
2023 at 3pm MS Teams 
(CM) 

    

• Fairness and Wellbeing 
Commission 

    

` 
Wednesday 13th December 

2023 at 9am, Council 
Chamber (CM) 

Thursday 7th December 2023 
at 2pm, Sheffield (CM) 

Thursday 7th December 2023 
at 4.30pm, Council Chamber 

(CR) 
 

Thursday 7th December 2023 
at 10am, MS Teams  

(CR) 

P
age 39



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Members 
Blake and L Ball) 

• JHOSC – Chair only as 
appointed Member on 
Committee 

 

• SEND Strategy (c) 

• Educational Outcomes (c) 
 

• Street Scene and 
Enforcement (c)  

 

Jan  

Tuesday 23rd January 2024 at 
10am Briefing Session 

MS Teams (CM/CR) 
   

Monday 22nd January 2024 at 
10am Council Chamber 
Briefing session (CR) 

• Budget 

• Corporate Plan (c) 
   

• Waste and Recycling to 
include current/future 
contract and changes to 
regulations/impact on 
future green agenda (c) 

• Future Parks Scheme (c) 

• Heatwave Update (c) 

Feb 

Monday 5th February 2024 at 
1pm, Council Chamber 

(CM/CR) 

 8th February 2024 at 10am, 
Council Chamber (CM) 

 
Friday 2nd February 2024 at 
11am Briefing Session MS 

Teams (CR) 

Thursday 15th February 2024 
at 10am Crime & Disorder 

Committee, Council 
Chamber (CR) 

• Budget 

• Corporate Plan (c) 

• Integrated Care Board – 
invite (c) 

 
Primary Care Access recovery 
plan for Doncaster area  

Pharmacy access, demands 
and national position   

Oral health to include Dentistry 
access, demands and national 
position 

 
• St Leger Homes Tenancy 

Agreement 
 

• Safer Doncaster 
Partnership (c) 

Thursday 22nd February 2024 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(informal) (CR) 
    

     

P
age 40



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

March 

Thursday 28th March 2024 at 
10am, Council Chamber (CM) 

Thursday 21st March 2024 at 
2pm, Council Chamber (CM) 

Thursday 14th March 2024 at 
4.30pm, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 7th March at 
2pm, Council Chamber 
(CR) 

 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Members 
N Ball and G Jones) (c) 

 

• Public Health Protection 
Annual Report (c) 

• Social care demand 
management and child 
neglect (c) 

• Local Plan update (C)  Informal session following the 
above meeting. (CM) 

• Doncaster Delivering 
Together Investment Plan 
update. 

 JHOSC (TBC)    

April 

   
Wednesday 10th April 
2024 at 10am Council 
Chamber  

 

   
• St Leger Homes Tenancy 

Agreement 
 

 

POSSIBLE ISSUES FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION OR TO BE SCHEDULED 

 

Quarterly performance 
18th July 2024 
(Invite to Cllrs Smith and 
Nightingale) 

Dementia – 2024/25 TBC 
 

Inclusion Update/Elective 
Home Education - – possibly 
for the future 
 

Market and Corn Exchange 
update – possible invite to 
MAM – Early 2024/25 TBC 

 

 

SLH Complaints appeal policy – 
with R and H briefing session 
new year 2024 

Consultations from 
Directorates as required 

 

Universal Services - how it is 
being impacted by cost of 
living and post pandemic 
school language and school 
ready – addressed 22/23 
 

 

 

P
age 41



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 

Fairness and well-being 
commission update 

 EPIC - Biodiversity Net Gain 
-   May 2024/25 (poss invite 
to OSMC)  

Biodiversity Net Gain -  could 
be covered of with section in 
Local Plan report  

 

 

Update on Community 
Prevention Model requested at 
7th November meeting  

Age Friendly City – early input, 
plans and practicalities – how 
can the Authority drive this? 
TBC   

Work Experience, NEET, 
work opportunities for SEND 
– include visit to café – March 
2025 (as outlined at the 7th 
Dec meeting 2023) 

1. Housing crisis – aging 
population /Outcomes from the 
OT medical assessment 
(H&ASC O&S undertook 
dedicated meeting in 2022/23) 
-  possibly for the future 

 

 

 Invite to Aspire – Substance 
misuse – possibly for the future 

 2. Regeneration and Economy: 

Connectivity – new technology 
availability, impact of working 
from home and town centre 
footfall – picked up through 
Development update and 
Finance and Performance at 
OSMC. 
 

 

 
 Maternity care – possibly for 

the future 
 SLH Complaints appeal policy 

– with OSMC briefing session 
new year 2024 

 

 

 Learning Disability and Autism 
Strategy review late 2023/24 
work plan programme - 
possibly for the future 

 Retro-fitting and new heat 
pump systems/Investment in 
apprenticeships (raised at 
Panel on 19th October 2023) – 
TBC 

 

 
 Health and Well-being Strategy 

late 2023 / early 2024 
 

 
 

 

 RDaSH – Strategy moving 
forward – possible invite to 
address outcomes and 
difference being made for 
future delivery – 2024/25 

 

 

 

P
age 42



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 

 
 YAS – possibly for the future 

(on JHOSC workplan as part of 
regional health scrutiny update) 

 
 

 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN FOR THE PERIOD 1 FEBRUARY 2024 TO 31 MAY 2024 

 
The Forward Plan sets out details of all Key Decisions expected to be taken during the next four months by either the Cabinet collectively, The Mayor, 
Deputy Mayor, Portfolio Holders, or Officers and is updated and republished each month. 
 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which is likely:- 
 (a)   to result in the Local Authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
        Local Authority's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or  
 (b)   to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or  
        electoral divisions in the area of the Local Authority; 
 (c)   any decision related to the approval or variation of the Policy and budget Framework that is reserved to the Full Council. 
 
The level of expenditure/savings which this Authority has adopted as being financially significant are (a) in the case of the revenue budget, gross full-year 
effect of £250,000 or more b) in the case of capital budget, £1,000,000 or more in respect of a single project or otherwise across one financial year.or the 
decision has a significant impact on 2 or more wards. 
 
Please note in addition to the documents identified in the plan, other documents relevant to a decision may be submitted to the Decision Maker. Details of 
any additional documents submitted can be obtained from the Contact Officer listed against each decision identified in this plan. 
 
In respect of exempt items, if you would like to make written representations as to why a report should be considered in public, please send these to the 
contact officer responsible for that particular decision. Unless otherwise stated, representations should be made at least 14 days before the expected date 
of the decision. 
 
KEY 
Those items in BOLD are NEW  
Those items in ITALICS have been RESCHEDULED following issue 
of the last plan 
 

 

 
Prepared on: Wednesday 3rd January 2024 and superseding all previous Forward Plans with effect from the period identified above. 

 
Damian Allen 

Chief Executive 
 

P
age 45



2 

 
 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 

 
 Cabinet Member For: 

 
Mayor - Ros Jones 
Deputy Mayor - Councillor Glyn Jones 
 
Councillor Lani-Mae Ball 
Councillor Nigel Ball 
Councillor Joe Blackham 
Councillor Rachael Blake 
Councillor Phil Cole 
Councillor Mark Houlbrook 
Councillor Jane Nightingale 
Councillor Sarah Smith 

- Budget and Policy 
- Housing and Business 
 
 Early Help, Education, Skills and Young People 
- Public Health, Communities, Leisure and Culture 
- Highways, Infrastructure and Enforcement 
- Children’s Social Care and Equalities 
 Finance, Traded Services and Planning 
- Sustainability and Waste 
- Corporate Resources. 
- Adult Social Care 

 
Some Decisions listed in the Forward Plan are to be taken by Full Council 
 
Members of the Full Council are:- 
 
Councillors Nick Allen, Bob Anderson, Duncan Anderson, Lani-Mae Ball, Nigel Ball, Iris Beech, Joe Blackham, Rachael Blake, Nigel Cannings 
Glenn Bluff, Laura Bluff, Bev Chapman, James Church, Gemma Cobby, Phil Cole, Jane Cox, Steve Cox, Linda Curran, Amiee Dickson, Susan 
Durant, Yetunde Elebuibon, Sue Farmer, Sean Gibbons, Julie Grace, Martin Greenhalgh, Ken Guest, John Healy, Leanne Hempshall, Charlie 
Hogarth, Mark Houlbrook, Debbie Hutchinson, Glyn Jones, R. Allan Jones, Ros Jones, Jake Kearsley Majid Khan, Jane Kidd, Sue Knowles, 
Sophie Liu, Tracey Moran, John Mounsey, Emma Muddiman-Rawlins Tim Needham, David Nevett, Jane Nightingale, Thomas Noon, Ian Pearson, 
Andy Pickering, Cynthia Ransome, Rob Reid, Andrea Robinson, Dave Shaw, Glynis Smith, Sarah Smith, Gary Stapleton, and Austen White 
 

 
 

P
age 46



3 

 
WHEN 

DECISION IS 
EXPECTED TO 

BE TAKEN 

KEY DECISION TO BE 
TAKEN 

RELEVANT 
CABINET 
MEMBER 

DECSION TO 
BE TAKEN BY 

CONTACT 
OFFICER(S) 

DOCUMENTS 
TO BE 

CONSIDEED 
BY DECISION 

MAKER 

REASON FOR 
EXEMPTION – LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 

1972 SCHEDULE 12A 

5 Feb 2024 
 

Approval to tender and award 
Homelessness and Rough 
Sleeping Related Contracts 
 
 

Councillor 
Glyn Jones, 
Deputy Mayor, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing and 
Business. 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Business 
 

Mark Wakefield  
Mark.Wakefield@do
ncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

6 Feb 2024 
 

To accept Government funds 
to support resettlement 
integration and early 
prevention work across all 
wards and to allow delegation 
on any changes in the 
spending profile 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

David Hey, 
Integration and 
Partnerships 
Manager Tel: 01302 
736930 
David.Hey@doncast
er.gov.uk 
 

Funding 
Instruction 
(V1.0) for local 
authorities in 
support of the 
United 
Kingdoms 
Afghan 
Schemes - 
hotel and 
temporary 
accommodatio
n wraparound 
support - FY 
23-24 

Open 
 
 

7 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the discretionary 
Retail, Hospitality and 
Leisure relief scheme for 
Business Rates for 2024/25 
(extension of 2023/24 
scheme). 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Cabinet 
 

Alan Stoves, Head 
of Revenues and 
Benefits Tel: 01302 
735585 
Alan.stoves@donc
aster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 47



4 

7 Feb 2024 
 

To undertake Capital 
investment & service 
enhancements at the 
Doncaster Dome. 
 
 

Councillor 
Nigel Ball, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture 
 

Cabinet 
 

Andy Maddox, 
Strategic and 
Service Lead leisure 
Services.  
andy.maddox@donc
aster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Part exempt 
 
 

14 Feb 2024 
 

Approval to renew the 
Section 76 Agreement with 
South Yorkshire Integrated 
Care Board (SYICB) for a 
period of 5 years, for the 
provision of building-based 
day services for people with 
Learning Disability and/ or 
Autism with enhanced 
needs. 

Councillor 
Sarah Smith, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Adult Social 
Care 
 

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Adult Social 
Care 
 

Julia King  
julia.king@doncast
er.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the Revenue 
Budget 2024/25 - 2026/27 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council, 
Cabinet 
 

Faye Tyas, Chief 
Financial Officer and 
Assistant Director of 
Finance  
faye.tyas@doncaster
.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the Capital 
Strategy & Capital Budget 
2024/25 - 2027/28 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council, 
Cabinet 
 

Faye Tyas, Chief 
Financial Officer and 
Assistant Director of 
Finance  
faye.tyas@doncaster
.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 48



5 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the Housing 
Revenue Account Budget 
2024/25 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council, 
Cabinet 
 

Faye Tyas, Chief 
Financial Officer and 
Assistant Director of 
Finance  
faye.tyas@doncaster
.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement 2024/25- 2027/28 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council, 
Cabinet 
 

Faye Tyas, Chief 
Financial Officer and 
Assistant Director of 
Finance  
faye.tyas@doncaster
.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the Council's 
Corporate Plan 2024/25 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council, 
Cabinet 
 

Lee Tillman, 
Assistant Director, 
Chief Executives Tel: 
01302 734552 
lee.tillman@doncast
er.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the level of the 
Council Tax for 2024/25 and to 
pass appropriate statutory 
resolutions including the 
Council Tax requirement for 
2024/25. 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council 
 

Alan Stoves, Head of 
Revenues and 
Benefits Tel: 01302 
735585 
Alan.stoves@doncas
ter.gov.uk 

 
 

Open 
 
 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To update the Council Tax 
Long-term Empty Homes 
Premium from 1st April 
2024. 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council 
 

Alan Stoves, Head 
of Revenues and 
Benefits Tel: 01302 
735585 
Alan.stoves@donc
aster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 49



6 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To introduce a Council Tax 
Second Home Premium from 
1st April 2025. 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council 
 

Alan Stoves, Head 
of Revenues and 
Benefits Tel: 01302 
735585 
Alan.stoves@donc
aster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

26 Feb 2024 
 

To approve the Council's Pay 
Policy Statement for 
2024/2025. 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Council 
 

Rebecca Hardwick, 
Head of Service, 
Human Resources 
Tel: 01302 736278 
RebeRebecca.Hard
wick@doncaster.gov
.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Mar 2024 
 

To sign off the 'Your Care and 
Support': Doncaster Adult 
Social Care Local Account 
2024. 
 
 

Councillor 
Sarah Smith, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Adult Social 
Care 
 

Cabinet 
 

Bryony Shannon, 
Strategic Lead, 
Directors Office, 
Adults, Health and 
Wellbeing  
Bryony.Shannon@d
oncaster.gov.uk 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Mar 2024 
 

To approve and accept 
funding of circa £2,496,000 
over a 5 year period 
commencing April 2024, in 
relation to the new national 
plan - Stopping the Start:  
new plan to create a 
smokefree generation. 
 
 
 
 
 

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture 
 

Cabinet 
 

Victoria Shakleton, 
Public Health 
Improvement Co-
ordinator Tel: 
01302 862146 
Victoria.Shackleton
@doncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 50



7 

13 Mar 2024 
 

To authorise the Carers' local 
account (entitled Local Carers' 
Journey, 2023/2024) which 
describes what we achieved in 
2022 - 2023 and priorities 
agreed with Doncaster people 
for the year ahead. 
 
 

Councillor 
Sarah Smith, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Adult Social 
Care 
 

Cabinet 
 

Bal Mohammad, 
Contracts Officer, 
Adults, Health and 
Wellbeing Tel: 
01302736577 
Bal.Mohammed@do
ncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Mar 2024 
 

To accept up to £17,950,341 
Levelling Up Fund (Round 3) 
money for the delivery of the 
Levelling Up Doncaster 
North programme. 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Cabinet 
 

Jonathan Bucknall, 
Head of Strategic 
Investment and 
External Funding  
jonathan.bucknall@
doncaster.gov.uk 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Mar 2024 
 

Quarter 3 2023-24 Finance 
and Performance Report. 
 
 

Councillor Phil 
Cole, Portfolio 
Holder for 
Finance, 
Traded 
Services and 
Planning, 
Mayor Ros 
Jones, Mayor 
of Doncaster 
with 
responsibility 
for Budget and 
Policy 

Cabinet 
 

Matthew, Smith, 
Head of Financial 
Management Tel: 
01302-737663 
matthew.smith@don
caster.gov.uk, 
Sennette Wroot, 
Senior Strategy & 
Performance 
Manager Tel: 01302 
862533 
Sennette.Wroot@do
ncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Mar 2024 
 

St. Leger Homes Performance 
Report 2022/23 Quarter 3. 
 
 

Councillor 
Glyn Jones, 
Deputy Mayor, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing and 
Business. 

Cabinet 
 

Julie Crook Tel: 
01302 862705 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 51



8 

17 Apr 2024 
 

To accept £6,958,555 of 
funding for delivery of the 
Local and Neighbourhood 
Transport Complementary 
Programme, through the 
City Region Sustainable 
Transport Settlement via the 
South Yorkshire Mayoral 
Combined Authority. 
 
 

Councillor 
Joe 
Blackham, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Highways, 
Infrastructure 
and 
Enforcement 
 

Cabinet 
 

Neil Firth, Head of 
Service, Major 
Projects and 
Investment  
neil.firth@doncaste
r.gov.uk, Kerry 
Perruzza, Senior 
Transport PLanner  
Kerry.Perruzza@do
ncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

17 Apr 2024 
 

To approve the Doncaster 
Delivering Together 
Investment Plan 2024/25. 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Cabinet 
 

Jonathan Bucknall, 
Head of Strategic 
Investment and 
External Funding  
jonathan.bucknall@d
oncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

 

P
age 52


	Agenda
	5 Corporate Plan 2024/25
	Corporate Plan 2024-25v6 OSMC

	6 Overview and Scrutiny Consideration of the Mayor's Budget Proposals 2024/25 - 2027/28
	7 Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan and the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	Printed plan Forward Plan for the Period 1 February 2024 to 31 May 2024 Cabinet




